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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR WESTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA,
PITTSBURGH DIVISION

MILLER’S FURNITURE OF MERCER
COMPANY, d/b/a HANEY’S COMFORT
LIVING FURNITURE, a Pennsylvania
Corporation, individually and as the
representative of a class of similarly-situated
persons,

Plaintiff,
Case No.
V.

- BANNER LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY,
WILLIAM PENN LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY OF NEW YORK, DIM
ADVISORY GROUP, LLC, DONALD
QUIRKE, and JOHN DOES 1-12,

vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv

Defendants.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Plaintiff, Miller’s Furniture of Mercer Company d/b/a Haney’s Comfort Living
Furniture (“Haney’s” and “Plaintiff”), brings this action on behalf of itself and all other
‘persons similarly situated and, except for those allegations pertaining to Plaintiff or its
attorneys, which are based upon personal knowledge, alleges the following upon
»ilblformation aﬁd belief against defendants Banner Life Insurance Company (“Banner
_ Life”), DJM Advisory Group, LLC (“DJM’;), Donald Quirke (“-Quirke”), William Penn
Life Insurance Company of New York (“William Penn”), and John Does 1-12 (collectively
“Defendants™):

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

1. Defendants have sent advertisemnents by facsimile in violation of the

- Telephone Consumer Protection Act, 47 U.S.C. §227, and the regulations the Federal
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Communications Commission (“FCC”) has prescribed thereunder, 47 C.F.R. § 64.1200
(collectively, the “TCPA™).

2. Defendants sent Plaintiff at least one advertisement by facsimile and in
violation of the TCPA. Exhibit A.

3. Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of itself and a class of all similarly-
situated persons, and against Defendants, seeking statutory damages for each violation of
the TCPA, trebling of the statutory damages, injunctive relief, and all other relief the Court
deems appropriate under the circumstances.

4. Unsolicited faxes cause damage to their recipients. A junk fax recipient
loses the use of its fax machine, paper, and ink toner. Unsolicited faxes tie up th¢ telephone
lines, prevent fax machines from receiving authorized faxes, prevent their use for
authorized outgoing faxes, cause undue wear and tear on the recipients’ fax machines, and
require additional labor to attempt to discern the source and purpose of the unsolicited
message. Moreover, a junk fax interrupts the recipient’s privacy. An unsolicited fax wastes
the recipient’s valuable time that would have been spent on something else.

5. The TCPA prohibits the use of “any telephone facsimile machine, computer
or other device to send, to a facsimile machine, an unsolicited advertisement....” 47 U.S.C.
| § 227 (b)(1XC). The TCPA defines an “unsolicited advertisement” as “any material
advertising the commercial availability or quality of any property, goods, or services which
- is transmitted to any person without that person’s prior express invitation o;’ permission....”
Id., § 227 (a)(5) (emphasis added).

6. Defendants’ fax advertises their “affordable” 10-Year Guaranteed term life

insurance products. Exhibit A.
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PARTIES, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE

7. Miller’s Furniture of Mercer Company d/b/a Haney’s Comfort Living
Furniture is a Pennsylvania corporation with its principal place of business at 30 North
Beaver Street, New Castle, Pennsylvania.

8. On information and belief, Defendant DJM is a New York limited liability
company with its principal place of business located at 41 Scout Hill Road, Mahopac, New
“York. DIM has no registered agent listed with the New York Department of State Division
of Corporations.

9. Donald Quirke is an individual residing at 41 Scout Hill Road, Mahopac,
- New York. He is the president, founder, and owner of Defendant DIM.

10. On information and belief, Banner Life is an insurance company
incorporated in the state of Maryland, with its corporate headquarters located at 3275
Bennett Creek Avenue, Frederick, Maryland.

1.  On information and belief, William Penn Life Insurance Company of New
| -York is a wholly owned subsidiary of Banner Life with its corporate headquarters located
at 3275 Bennett Creek Avenue, Frederick, Maryland.

12, John Doe Defendants 1-12 are persons yet unknown to Plaintiff that actively
participated in the transmission of fax advertisements to the class, or benefitted from those
| ~ transmissions.

13.  This Court has federal question subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28
U.S.C. §1331, and supplemental jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. §1367.

14. Personal jurisdiction exists over Defendants in Pennsylvania because
Defendants have transacted business and committed tortious acts within the State by

causing the transmission of unlawful facsimile communications into the State.

3
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15. Venue is proper in the Western District of Pennsylvania, Pittsburgh
Division because Defendants committed statutory torts within this District and a significant
portion of the events took place here.

FACTS

16. DJM is an independent insurance agency.

17. | Banner Life underwrites and issues term life insurance policies.

18.  William Penn underwrites and issues term life insurance policies.

19.  Defendants sent advertisements by facsimile to Plaintiff and a class of
similarly-situated persons. Whether Defendants did so directly or with the assistance of a
third party (yet unknown to Plaintiff), Defendants are directly liable for violating the
TCPA.

20. Plaintiff has received at least one of Defendants’ advertisements by
facsimile. A true and correct copy of the fax received in or about April 3, 2015 is attached

as Exhibit A. Plaintiff intends to discover the number of other Defendants’ advertisements

sent to Plaintiff by fax.
21.  Exhibit A is a one-page document Defendants sent by fax advertising

Defendants’ term life insurance products. The fax advertises the commercial availability
“or quality of property, goods, or services. Exhibit A describes the available insurance
products as “affordable” and “guaranteed.” The fax provides information about the
availability and price of various term life insurance products purportedly offered by DIM,

and methods for contacting DIM to receive a personalized term life insurance quote.
22.  Exhibit A advertises term life insurance policies issued by Defendant

Banner Life and Defendant William Penn,
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23. Exhibit A includes DJM’s name, address, website address, and contact
information.

24. Exhibit A includes Defendant Banner Life and Defendant William Penn’s
names and the states where Defendant Banner Life and Defendant William Penn are
located and do business.

25. On information and belief, Defendant Banner Life receives some or all of
the revenues from the sale of the products, goods, and services issued by Banner Life and

| advertised on Exhibit A and Banner Life profits and benefits from the sale of the products,
- goods, and services advertised on Exhibit A issued by Banner Life.

26. On information and belief, Defendant William Penn receives some or all of
the revenues from the sale of the products, goods, and services issued by William Penn and
advertised on Exhibit A and William Penn profits and benefits from the sale of the
_; products, goods, and services advertised on Exhibit A issued by William Penn.,

27.  Exhibit A does not include a compliant opt-out notice required by 47 C.F.R.
§64.1200 (2)(4).

28. Plaintiff did not expressly invite or give permission to anyone to .send
Exhibit A or any other advertisement from DJM, Banner Life, or William Pehn to
: PlaintifPs fax machine,

29, On information and belief, Defendants sent advertisements by facsimile to
Plaintiff and more than 39 other persons in violation of the TCPA throughout the class
period.

30.  Plaintiff and the other class members owe no obligation to protect their fax
machines from Defendants. Their fax machines are ready to send and receive their urgent

communications, or private communications about their clients’ needs, not to receive

5
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Defendants’ unlawful advertisements.

31. At all relevant times, Defendant Quirke personally and directly managed
the operations of DJM.

32. At all relevant times, Defendant Quirke sent and/or personally authorized
the sending of the subject faxes.

33.  Defendant Quirke created or authorized the wording in the subject faxes.

34. At all relevant times, Defendant-Quirke intentionally authorized and/or
participated in the actions of DJM.

35. At all relevant times, Defendant Quirke failed to implement policies and
| procedures that complied with the TCPA.
36. At all relevant times, Defendant Quirke’s actions were intentional.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

37.  Plaintiff brings this action as a class action on behalf of itself and all others

similarly situated as members of a class.
38.  The “TCPA Class” is defined as follows:

All persons who were sent one or more telephone facsimile messages from
DIM Advisory Group offering “Affordable Term Life Insurance”
- underwritten and/or issued by Banner Life Insurance Company or William
- Penn Life Insurance Company of New York that did not contain an opt out
notice that complied with federal law, and who did not provide prior express
permission or invitation to receive the facsimile(s).

39.  There are 2 classes Plaintiff seeks to represent for the conversion claim.
40.  The first class Plaintiff seeks to represent for the conversion claim, the “PA

Conversion Class”, is initially defined as follows:

All persons sent one or more telephone facsimile messages from DIM
Advisory Group offering “Affordable Term Life Insurance” underwritten
and issued by Banner Life Insurance Company or William Penn Life
Insurance Company of New York, which they received in the

6
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, and who did not provide prior express
permission or invitation to receive the facsimile.

41.  The second class Plaintiff secks to represent for the conversion claim, the

“US Conversion Class”, is initially defined as follows:

claim

All persons sent one or more telephone facsimile messages from DJM
Advisory Group offering “Affordable Term Life Insurance” underwritien
and issued by Banner Life Insurance Company or William Penn Life
Insurance Company of New York, which they received in any state except
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, and who did not provide prior express
permission or invitation to receive the facsimile.

42.  There are 2 classes Plaintiff seeks to represent for the trespass to chattel

43, The first class Plaintiff secks to represent for the trespass to chattel claim,

the “PA Trespass Class”™, is initially defined as follows:

All persons sent one or more telephone facsimile messages from DIM
Advisory Group offering “Affordable Term Life Insurance” underwritten
and issued by Banner Life Insurance Company or William Penn Life

. Insurance Company of New York, which they received in the

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, and who did not provide prior express
permission or invitation to receive the facsimile.

44.  The second class Plaintiff seeks to represent for the trespass to chattel claim,

‘the “US Trespass Class”, is initially defined as follows:

claim

All persons sent one or more telephone facsimile messages from DIM
Advisory Group offering “Affordable Term Life Insurance” underwriiten

 and issued by Banner Life Insurance Company or William Penn Life

Insurance Company of New York, which they received in any state except
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, and who did not provide prior express
permission or invitation to receive the facsimile.

45.  There are 2 classes Plaintiff seeks to represent for the private nuisance

46.  The first class Plaintiff seeks to represent for the private nuisance claim,

the “PA Nuisance Class”, is initially defined as follows:

7
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All persons sent one or more telephone facsimile messages from DIM

Advisory Group offering “Affordable Term Life Insurance” underwritten

and issued by Banner Life Insurance Company or William Penn Life

Insurance Company of New York, which they received in the

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, and who did not provide prior express

permission or invitation to receive the facsimile.

47.  The second class Plaintiff seeks to represent for the private nuisance claim,
the “US Nuisance Class”, is initially defined as follows:

All persons sent one or more telephone facsimile messages from DIM

Advisory Group offering “Affordable Term Life Insurance” underwritten

‘and issued by Banner Life Insurance Company or William Penn Life

Insurance Company of New York, which they received in any state except

the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, and who did not provide prior express

permission or invitation to receive the facsimile.

48.  Plaintiff expressly reserves the right to modify the proposed class
definitions or propose subclasses.

49.  Excluded from the classes are Defendants, any entity in which Defendants
have a controlling interest, each of Defendants’ officers, directors, legal representatives,
vheirs, successors, and assigns, and any Judge assigned to this action, including his or her
- immediate family.

50.  Oninformation and belief, Defendants’ fax advertising campaigns involved
other, substantially-similar advertisements also sent without a compliant opt-out notice
- required by the TCPA. Plaintiff intends to locate those advertisements in discovery.

51.  This action is brought and may properly be maintained as a class action
pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23. This action satisfies Rule 23 (a)’s numerosity, commonality,
typicality, and adequacy requirements. Additionally, prosecution of Plaintiff’s claims
separately from the putative class’s claims would create a risk of inconsistent or varying

adjudications under Rule 23 (b) (1) (A). Furthermore, the questions of law or fact that are

- common in this action predominate over any individual questions of law or fact making
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class representation the superior method to adjudicate this controversy under Rule 23 (b)

3).

52. Numerosity/impracticality of joinder. On information and belief, the

classes consist of more than 39 persons and, thus, are so numerous that individual joinder
of each member is impracticable. The precise number of class members and their identities
are unknown to Plaintiff, but will be obtained from Defendants’ records or the records of
third parties.

53. Commonality and predominance. There is a well-defined community of
interest and common questions of law and fact that predominate over any questions
affecting only individual members of the classes. These common legal and factual

| questions, which do not vary from one class member to another, and which may be
determined without reference to the individual circumstances of any class member, include,
but are not limited to the following:

a Whether Defendants sent advertisements by facsimile promoting the
commercial availability or quality of property, goods, or services;

b. Whether Exhibit A and other yet-to-be-discovered facsimiles sent
by or on behalf of Defendants advertised the commercial availability or quality of
property, goods or services,

c. The manner and method Defendants used to compile or obtain the
list(s) of fax numbers to which they sent Exhibit A and other fax advertisements;

d. Whether Defendants’ fax advertisements contained opt-out notices
compliant with the TCPA;

e. Whether Plaintiff and the other class members should be awarded

statutory damages;
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f. Whether Defendants committed conversion, trespass to chattel,
and/or private nuisance, and the damages thereto.

g. If the Court finds that Defendants willfully or knowingly violated
the TCPA, whether the Court should exercise its discretion to increase the amount
of the statutory damages award to an amount equal to not more than 3 times the
amount; and,

h. Whether the Court should enjoin Defendants from faxing
advertisements in the future.

54.  Typicality of claims. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the other
class members, because Plaintiff and all class members were injured by the same wrongful
practices. Plaintiff and the members of the class received Defendants® advertisements by
facsimile and those advertisements did not contain a compliant opt-out notice required by
the TCPA. Under the facts of this case, because the focus is upon Defendants’ conduct, if
Plaintiff prevails on its claims, then the other putative class members will prevail as well.

535. Adequacy of representation. Plaintiff is an adequatc representative of the

class because its interests do not conflict with the interests of the class it seeks to represent.
"Plaintiff has retained counsel competent and experienced in complex class action litigation,
and TCPA litigation in particular, and Plaintiff intends to vigorously prosecute this action.
Plaintiff and its counsel will fairly and adequately protect the interest of members of the

classes.

56. Prosecution of separate claims would yvield inconsistent results. Even

though the questions of fact and law in this action are predominantly common to Plaintiff
and the putative class members, separate adjudication of each class member’s claims would

- yield inconsistent and varying adjudications. Such inconsistent rulings would create

10
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incompatible standards for Defendants to operate under iffwhen class members bring
additional lawsuits concerning the same unsolicited fax advertisements of if Defendants

choose to advertise by fax again in the future.

57. A class action is the superior method of adjudicating the common

questions of law or fact that predominate over individual questions. A class action is

superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of this lawsuit,
because individual litigation of the claims of all class members is economically unfeasible
and procedurally impracticable. The likelihood of individual class members prosecuting
| ~ separate claims is remote, and even if every class member could afford individual litigation,
the court system would be unduly burdened by individual litigation of such cases. Plaintiff
knows of no difficulty to be encountered in the management of this action that would
preclude its maintenance as a class action. Relief concerning Plaintiff’s rights under the
laws herein alleged and with respect to the class would be proper. Plaintiff envisions no
difficulty in the management of this action és a class action.
COUNT I

TELEPHONE CONSUMER PROTECTION ACT, 47 U.S.C. §227
TCPA CLASS

SS. Plaintiff incorporates the preceding paragraph; as though fully set forth
‘herein.
| 59.  Plaintiff brings Count I on behalf of itself and a class of similarly situated
_persons against Defendants.
60.  The TCPA prohibits the “use of any telephone facsimile machine, computer
or other device to send an unsolicited advertisement to a telephone facsimile machine....”

47 U.S.C. § 227 (b) (1).

61.  The TCPA defines “unsolicited advertisement™ as “any material advertising

11
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the commercial availability or quality of any property, goods, or services which is
transmifted to any person without that person’s express invitation or permission.” 47
U.S.C. § 227 (a) (4).

62.  Exhibit A advertises Defendants’ commercially available term life‘
insurance products.

63.  Defendants sent their faxes to Plaintiff and others offering to provide
affordable, guaranteed term life insurance. Exhibit A.

64.  The TCPA provides a private right of action as follows:

3. Private right of action. A person may, if

otherwise permitted by the laws or rules of court of a state,
bring in an appropriate court of that state:

(A)  Anaction based on a violation of this
subsection or the regulations prescribed under this
subsection to enjoin such violation,

(B) An action to recover for actual
monetary loss from such a violation, or to receive

$500 in damages for each such violation, whichever
is greater, or

(C)  Both such actions.
47 U.8.C. § 227 (b) (3).
| 65. The Court, in its discretion, may treble the statutory damages if it
- determines that a violation was knowing or willful. 47 U.S.C. § 227 (b) (3).
66.  The TCPA expressly mandates the form and content of an opt-out notice.
| 47 U.8.C. § 227 (b) (2) (D) & (E), in relevant part, states:

In implementing the requirements of this subsection, the Commission ...

(D) shall provide that a notice contained in an unsolicited advertisement
complies with the requirements under this subparagraph only if...

12
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~ (1) the notice is clear and conspicuous and on the first page of the unsolicited
advertisement;

(ii) the notice states that the recipient may make a request to the sender of
the unsolicited advertisement not to send any future unsolicited
- advertisements to a telephone facsimile machine or machines and that
failure to comply, within the shortest reasonable time, as determined by the
Commission, with such a request meeting the requirements under
subparagraph (E) is unlawful;

(iii) the notice sets forth the requirements for a request under subparagraph

(B);
(iv) the notice includes —

() a domestic contact telephone and facsimile machine
number for the recipient to transmit such a request to
the sender; and

(II) a cost-free mechanism for a recipient to transmit a request
pursuant to such notice to the sender of the unsolicited
advertisement; the Commission shall by rule require the sender to
provide such a mechanism and may, in the discretion of  the
Commission and subject to such conditions as the Commission may
prescribe, exempt certain classes of small business senders, but only
if the Commission determines that the costs to such class are unduly
burdensome given the revenues generated by such small businesses;

(v) the telephone and facsimile machine numbers and the cost-free
mechanism set forth pursuant to clause (iv) permit an individual or business
to make such a request at any time on any day of the week; and

(vi) the notice complies with the requirements of subsection (d) of this
section;

(E) shall provide, by rule, that a request not to send future unsolicited
advertisements to a telephone facsimile machine complies with the
requirements under this subparagraph only if—

(i) the request identifies the telephone number or numbers of the
telephone facsimile machine or machines to which the request

relates;

(ii) the request is made to the telephone or facsimile number of the
sender of such an unsolicited advertisement provided pursuant to
subparagraph (D)(iv) or by any other method of communication as
determined by the Commission; and

13
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(1i1) the person making the request has not, subsequent to such
request, provided express invitation or permission to the sender, in
writing or otherwise, to send such advertisements to such person at
such telephone facsimile machine;

67. The FCC’s regulations at 47 C.F.R. §64.1200 (a) (4) (iii)) & (v) expressly

require the following:

(iii) The advertisement contains a notice that informs the recipient of the ability and
‘means to avoid future unsolicited advertisements. A notice contained in an
advertisement complies with the requirements under this paragraph only if -

(A) The notice is clear and conspicuous and on the first page of the
advertisement;

(B) The notice states that the recipient may make a request to the sender of
the advertisement not to send any future advertisements to a telephone
facsimile machine or machines and that failure to comply, within 30 days,
with such a request meeting the requirements under paragraph (a)(4)(v) of
this section is unlawful;

(C) The notice sets forth the requirements for an opt-out request under
paragraph (a)(4)(v) of this section;

(D) The notice includes -

(1) A domestic contact telephone number and facsimile machine
number for the recipient to transmit such a request to the sender; and

(2) If neither the required telephone number nor facsimile machine

number is a toll-free number, a separate cost-free mechanism including a

Web site address or email address, for a recipient to transmit a request

pursuant to such notice to the sender of the advertisement. A local telephone

- number also shall constitute a cost-free mechanism so long as recipients are

local and will not incur any long distance or other separate charges for calls
‘made to such number; and

(E) The telephone and facsimile mimbers and cost-free mechanism
identified in the notice must permit an individual or business to make an
opt-out request 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

(v) A request not to send future unsolicited advertisements to a telephone facsimile
machine complies with the requirements under this subparagraph only if -

(A) The request identifies the telephone number or numbers of the telephone
facsimile machine or machines to which the request relates;

14
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(B) The request is made to the telephone number, facsimile number, Web
site address or email address identified in the sender's facsimile
advertisement; and

(C) The person making the request has not, subsequent to such request,
provided express invitation or permission to the sender, in writing or
otherwise, to send such advertisements to such person at such telephone
facsimile machine.

68. Here, Defendants violated 47 U.S.C. § 227 (b) (1) (C) by sending an
advertisement by facsimile (such as Exhibit A) to Plaintiff and the other class members
without their prior express invitation or permission.

69.  The TCPA requires that every advertisement sent by facsimile must include
a gompliant opt-out notice clearly and conspicuously displayed on the bottom of its first
page. 47 C.F.R. § 64.1200 (a) (4).

70.  Defendants’ fax does not set forth the requirements for Plaintiff or any
member of the putative class to properly request an opt-out as explained by 47 C.F.R. §
64.1200 (a) (4) (v). Specifically, the fax does not inform Plaintiff and other putative class
members that the request will be honored only unless or until the person making the request
~ hasnot, subsequent to such request, provided express invitation or permission to the sender,

1in writing or otherwise, to send advertisements to such person at such telephone facsimile
- machine.
71.  Facsimile advertising imposes burdens on recipients that are distinct from
| - the burdens imposed by other types of advertising. The required opt-out notice provides
recipients the necessary information to opt-out of future fax transmissions, including a
notice that the sender’s failure to comply with the opt-out request will be unlawful. 47 .
C.F.R. § 64.1200 (a) (4).

72.  Exhibit A does not provide all of the information the TCPA requires for a

compliant opt-out notice. Exhibit A fails to state on the advertisement’s first page that the
15
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recipient may make a request to the sender not to send any future advertisement by
facsimile and that the sender’s failure to comply within 30 days is unlawful.

73.  Defendants’ failure to include a compliant opt-out notice on their fax
advertisements makes irrelevant any express consent or established business relationship
(*EBR”) that otherwise might have justified Defendants’ fax advertising campaigns. 47
C.F.R. § 64.1200 (a) (4).

74. The TCPA is a strict liability statute and Defendants are liable to Plaintiff

“and the other class merﬁbers even if their actions were negligent. 47 U.S.C. § 227 (b) (3).
| 75.  Even if Defendants did not intend to injure Plaintiff and the other class
rhembers, did not intend to violate their privacy, and did not intend to waste their valuable
time with Defendants’ advertisements, those facts are irrelevant because the TCPA is a
strict liability statute.

76.  If Defendants’ actions were knowing or purposeful, then the Court has the

discretion to increase the statutory damages up to 3 times the amount. 47 U.S.C. § 227 (b)
()

77. DJM is liable for the fax advertisements at issue because it sent the faxes,
caused the faxes to be sent, designed the faxes, caused the faxes to be designed, participated
bin the activity giving rise to or constituting the violation, the faxes were sent on its behalf,
or under general principles of vicarious liability, including actual authority, apparent
ﬁuthority and ratification,

78. Banner Life is liable for the fax advertisements at issue because it sent the
faxes, caused the faxes to be sent, designed the faxes, caused the faxes to be designed,
participated in the activity giving rise to or constituting the violation, the faxes were sent

on its behalf, approved the faxes to be sent, its products are advertised within the fax, or

16
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under general principles of vicarious liability, including actual authority, apparent authority
and ratification.

79.  William Penn is liable for the fax advertisements at issue because it sent the

faxes, caused the faxes to be sent, designed the faxes, caused the faxes to be designed,

- participated in the activity giving rise to or constituting the violation, the faxes were sent

on its behalf, approved the faxes to be sent, its products are advertised within the fax, or

| under general principles of vicarious liability, including actual authority, apparent authority
and ratification.

80.  Defendants knew or should have known that Plaintiff and the other class
members had not given express invitation or permission for Defendants or anybody else to
fax advertisements about Defendants’ goods, products, or services, that Plaintiff and the
other class members did not have an established business relationship with Defendants,
that Exhibit A is an advertisement, and that Exhibit A did not display a compliant opt-out
| notice as required by the TCPA.

81.  Defendants’ actions damaged Plaintiff and the other class members.

Receiving Defendants’ junk faxes caused the recipients to lose paper and toner consumed

- . in the printing of Defendants’ faxes. Moreover, the subject faxes used the fax machines of

Plaintiff and the other class members. The subject faxes cost Plaintiff time, as Plaintiff and
its employees wasted their tifne receiving, reviewing and routing Defendants’ illegal faxes.
That time otherwise wﬁuld have been spent on Plaintiff’s business activities. Defendants’
faxes unlawfully interrupted Plaintiff and the other class members’ privacy interests in
being left alone. Finally, the injury and property damage sustained by Plaintiff and the
other class members from the sending of unlawful fax advertisements occurred outside

Defendants’ premises.
17
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COUNT 11
CONVERSION
PA CONVERSION AND US CONVERSION CLASSES

82. Plaintiff incorporates the preceding paragraphs as though fully set forth
herein.

83. Plaintiff brings Count II on behalf of itself and a class of similarly situated
persons against Defendants.

84. Immediatély prior to the sending of the junk faxes, Plaintiff and the class
- members owned and had an unqualified and immediate right to the possession of the
paper and ink or toner used to print the faxes.

85. By sending the junk faxes, Defendants appropriated to their own use the
paper and ink or toner used to print the faxes and used them in such manner as to make
them unusable. Such appropriation was wrongful and without authorization.

86. Defendants knew or should have known that such appropriation of the
paper and ink or toner was WrongﬁJI and without authorization.

87. Plaintiff and the class members were deprived of the paper and ink or
toner, ﬁ/hiCh could no longer be used for any other purpose. Plaintiff and each class

member thereby suffered damages as a result of receipt of the Junk Faxes, and can

recover such damages.
88.  Defendants should be enjoined from committing similar violations.
COUNT 111
TRESPASS TO CHATTEL

PA TRESPASS AND US TRESPASS CLASSES

89. Plaintiff incorporates the preceding paragraphs as though fully set forth

herein.

90. Plaintiff brings Count I1I on behalf of itself and a class of similarly situated
18
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persons against Defendants.

91.  Plaintiff and the class members were entitled to immediate possession of
the equipment they used to receive faxes.

92.  Defendants sending Plaintiff and the class members junk faxes interfered
with their use of the receiving equipment and deprived them of the use of the equipment
- for a substantial time, and thus constitutes a trespass to such equipment.

93.  Defendants acted either intentionally or negligently in engaging in such
conduct.

94.  Plaintiff and each class member suffered damages as a result of receipt of
the junk faxes and can recover such damages.

95.  Defendants should be erij oined from continuing similar trespass.

COUNT IV

PRIVATE NUISANCE
PA NUISANCE AND US NUISANCE CLASSES

96.  Plaintiff incorporates the preceding paragraphs as though fully set forth

| herein.
97.  Plaintiff brings Count IV on behalf of itself and a class of similarly situated
- persons against Defendants.
| 98.  Plaintiff and class members had property rights and privileges in the
equipment and paper and ink/toner they used to receive faxes.
99, Defendants’ sending Plaintiff and class members Junk Faxes was an
invasion of their property causing significant harm and constitutes a private nuisance.
100. Defendants’ invasion of this property was intentional and unreasonable,

101. The interference with Plaintiff’s and the class members’ communications

equipment and supplies was unrcasonable,
19
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102. In the alternative to the above averment, Defendants’ invasion of this
property was unintentional but negligent.

103. Congress determined, in enacting the TCPA, that the prohibited - conduct
constituted private nuisances and intrusive invasions of privacy.

104. Plaintiff and class members are entitled to both damages and an order that
the nuisance be abated.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated,
demands judgment in its favor and against Defendants, jointly and severally as follows:

A.  That thé Court adjudge and decree that the present case may be properly
maintained as a class action, appoint Plaintiff as the representative of the class, and appoint
Plaintiff’s counsel as counsel for the class;

B. That the Court declare that the fax did not include a compliant opt-out
notice;

C. That the Court award $500.00 in statutory damages for each violation of the
TCPA;

| D. That, if it finds Défendants willfully or knowingly violated the TCPA’s
faxing prohibitions, the Court exercise its discretion to increase the amount of the statutory
damages award to an amount equal to not more than 3 times the amount (Plaintiff requests
trebling);

E. That the Court award actual damages pursuant to the conversion, trespass
to chattel, and private nuisance claims.

F. That the Court enter an injunction prohibiting Defendants from violating
- the TCPA,; and,

-G That the Court award costs and such further relief as the Court may deem
20
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just and proper.

Respectfully submitted,
SHEN RY L.
[)

o (Sl

Ri®hard Shenkan
Shenkan Injury Lawyer, LLC.
P.O. Box 7255

New Castle, PA 16107
Telephone: 412-716-5800
Facsimile: 888-769-1774

ATTORNEYS FOR MILLER’S
FURNITURE OF MERCER COMPANY,
d/b/a HANEY’S COMFORT LIVING

- FURNITURE, a Pennsylvania Corporation,

individually and as the representative of a

- class of similarly-situated persons

21



Case 2:17-cv-00557-LPL Document 1-1 Filed 04/28/17 Page 1 of 2

CIVIL COVER SHEET

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supE}ement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as
provided by lacal rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the
purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.) .

L (a) PLAINTIFFS DEFENDANTS
MILLER'S FURNITURE OF MERCER COMPANY, d/bfa HANEY'S DJM ADVISORY GROUP, LLC, BANNER LIFE INSURANCE

COMFORT LIVING FURNITURE COMPANY, and WILLIAM PENN LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
OF NEW YORK,
County of Residence of First Listed Defendant Putnam County, NY
{IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

IS 44 (Rev. 12/12)

(&) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff  { awrence County

(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)

NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.
(€) Attomneys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number) Attorneys (If Known)

Shenkan Injury Lawyers, LLC.,
6550 Lakeshore St., West Bloomfield, MI 48323

1V.

I1. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an “X" in One Box Only) III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place an “X” in One Box for Plaintiff
(For Diversity Cases Only} and One Box for Defendant}
3 1 US. Government £ 3 TFederal Question PTF DEF PTF DEF
Plaintiff (U.S. Government Not a Party) Citizen of This State (X1 O 1 Incosporated or Principal Place N4 04
of Business In This State
12 U.S. Government N 4 Divessity Citizen of Another State 0 2 N 2 Incorporated and Principal Place g5 Ks
Defendant (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item I} of Business In Another State
Citizen or Subject of a 3 0O 3 Faoreign Nation o6 6
: Foreign Country :
URE OF SUIT (Piace an “X” in One Box Only)

NAT

: HOONITRY e i
3 110 Insurance PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL INJURY | 625 Drug Related Seizure O 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 O 375 False Claims Act
. 120 Marine 3 310 Airplane (¥ 365 Personal Injury - of Property 21 USC 881 |0 423 Withdrawal 0 400 State Reapportionment
3 130 Miller Act O 315 Airplane Product Product Liability 1 690 Other 28 USC 157 3 410 Antitrust
O 140 Negotiable Instrument Liability O 367 Health Care/ 3 430 Banks and Banking
[ 150 Recovery of Overpayment | O 320 Assault, Libel & Pharmaceutical B ] 2 O 450 Commerce
& Enforcement of Judgment Slander Personal Injury 3 820 Copyrights 0 460 Deportation
0 151 Medicare Act D 338 Federal Employers’ Product Liability 3 B30 Patent O 470 Racketeer Influenced and
O 152 Recovery of Defaulted Liability 7 368 Asbestos Personal O 840 Trademark Corrupt Organizations
' Student Loans 340 Marine Injury Product 3 480 Consamer Credit
(Excludes Veterans) 3 345 Marine Product Liability 3 YCIAT SR T £F 490 Cable/Sat TV
B 153 Recovery of Overpayment Liability PERSONAL PROPERTY [0 710 Fair Labor Standards £3 861 HIA (1395M) O 850 Securities/Commodities/
of Veteran’s Benefits O 350 Meotor Vehicle 0 370 Other Fraud Act O 262 Black Lung (923) Exchange
. [ 160 Stackholders’ Suits 3 355 Moter Vehicle 3 371 Truth in Lending O 720 Labor/Management 7 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) K890 Other Statutory Actions
O 190 Other Contract Product Liability O 380 Other Personal Relations O 864 SSID Title XVI 0O 891 Agricultural Acts
O 195 Contract Product Liability | 360 Other Personal Property Damage 3 740 Railway Labor Act 3 865 RSI {405(g)) 0 &93 Environmental Matters
1 196 Franchise Injury 0 385 Property Damage 3 751 Family and Medical O 295 Freedom of Information
- 3 362 Personal Injury - Product Liability Leave Act Act

0 896 Arbitration
3 899 Administrative Procedure
Act/Review or Appeal of

O 790 Other Labor Litigation
£103 791 Employee Retirement
Income Security Act

DR LG
A REDERY

£3 870 Taxes (U.S.

aln

Habeas Corpus:

L0 CEp RS
‘0 210 Land Condemnation

-3 220 Foreclosure O 441 Voting 1 463 Alien Detainec or Defendant) Agency Decision
0 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment 0 442 Employment O 510 Motions to Vacate O 871 IRS—Third Party 3 950 ConstitnGionality of
O 240 Torts to Land [ 443 Housing/ Sentence 26 USC 7609 State Statutes
O 245 Tort Product Liability Accommodations O 530 General ’ fA
03 290 All Other Real Property (3 445 Amer. w/Disabilitics -{ ) 535 Death Penalty *7‘ C. ’

. Employment Other:
0 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - |3 540 Mandamus & Other {(J 465 Other Lnmigration
Other O 550 Civil Rights Actions

¥ 555 Prison Condition

O 560 Civil Detaince -
Conditions of
Confinement

0 448 Education

V. ORIGIN ¢Place an “X" in One Box Cnly)

"X 1 Original 3 2 Removed from
Proceeding State Court

O 5 Transferred from O 6 Multidistrict
Another District Litigation
(specify}

Cite the U .S. Civil § under which you are filing (Do no cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):
7 CW 47 USC 227

Brief description of cause: Tf-ﬁ‘?— a7y }AA)( /&M}ig& c}h/’/'fQqugf 7T OJW

3 4 Reinstated or
Reopened

F 3 Remanded from
Appellate Court

V1. CAUSE OF ACTION

VII. REQUESTED IN [0 CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION DEMAND § CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:
COMPLAINT: UNDER RULE 23, F.R.Cv.P. -t 25,000 JURYDEMAND: X Yes O No
VIIl. RELATED CASE(S) 4
IF ANY Seetusmetions) yupGE /U )4" DOCKET NUMBER
DATE GI\W?ORNE RECORD
/282 . -
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY B
RECEIPT # AMOUNT APPLYING IFP JUDGE

MAG. JUDGE




Case 2:17-cv-00557-LPL Document 1-1 Filed 04/28/17 Page 2 of 2

JS 44AREVISED June, 2009
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA
THIS CASE DESIGNATION SHEET MUST BE COMPLETED

PART A
This case belongs on the ( O Erie O Jonnstown Pittsburgh} calendar.

1. ERIE CALENDAR - If cause of action arose in the counties of Crawford, Elk, Erie,
Forest, McKean. Venang or Warren, OR any plaintiff or defendant resides in one of said
counties. :

2, JOHNSTOWN CALENDAR - If cause of action arose in the counties of Bedford, Blair,
Cambria, Clearfield or Somerset OR any plaintiff or defendant resides in one of
said counties,

3. Complete if on ERIE CALENDAR: I certify that the cause of action arose in
County and that the resides in County.

4. Complete if on JOENSTOWN CALENDAR: I certify that the cause of action arose in
County and that the ‘ resides in County.

PART B (You are to check ONE of the following)

1.(3 This case is related to Number . Shoxrt Caption
2. This case is not related to a pending or terminated case.

DEFINITIONS OF RELATED CASES:

CIVIL: Civil cases are deemed related when a case filed relates to property included in
another suit or involves the same issues of fact or it grows out of the same transactions
as another suit or involves the validity or infringement of a patent involved in another
suit EMINENT DOMAIN: Cases in contiguous cleosely located groups and in common ownership
groups which will lend themselves to consolidation for trial shall be deemed related.
HABEAS CORPUS & CIVIL RIGHTS: All habeas corpus petitions filed by the same individual
shall be deemed related. ALl pro se Civil Rights actions by the same individual shall be
“deemed related.

PARTC ‘

I. CIVIL CATEGORY (Select the applicable category}.
1. Antitrust and Securities Act Cases

Labor-Management Relations

Habeas corpus

Civil Rights

Patent, Copyright, and Trademark

Eminent Domain
All other federal question cases 776:0‘ ﬁ 47&{56 2’7—7

All personal and property damage tort cases, including maritime, FELA,

Jones Act, Motor vehicle, products liability, assault, defamation, malicious

prosecution, and false arrest

Insurance indemnity, contract and other diversity cases.

Government Collection Cases (shall include HEW Student Loans (Education),
Vv A Overpayment, Overpayment of Social Security, Enlistment
Overpayment (Army, Navy, etec.), HUD Loans, GAO Loans {Misc, Types),
Mortgage Foreclosures, SBA Loans, Civil Penalties and Coal Mine
Penalty and Reclamation Fees.)

3%

ORO000000

00 O

[

I certify that to the best of my knowledge the entries on thlS Case Designation

Sheet are true and correct Sf/fw/

C(?“L—d
—_— 4/ 1—9/1 7 @. C//éb/,é‘_

ATTORNEY AT LAW

%CC.C_

NOTE: ALL SECTIONS OF BOTH FORMS MUST BE COMPLETED BEFCRE CASE CAN BE PROCESSED.
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DIM Advisery Group, LLC

41 Scou! Hill Road

Mshopac, New York 10541

Fhone: 845-803-8370

Fak: 866-215-05%4

Webgite: alliermmsurance com
Speclafizing in Lits Insurance Stnca 1891,

ALL TERM INSURANCE.COM EXHIBIT
Protect your most valuable asset - Your Income ‘A__
with AFFORDABLE TERM LIFE INSURANCE

Are you paying too much?

Face Amount $250,000 $500,000 $1,000,000
| Sex , Male Female Mzle Female Male Female
Age 35 $1094  $10.06 $16.19 $14.44 $2669  $23.19
40 $13.13  $11.81  $20.56 §17.94  $31.06 $29.31
45 $1838  $16:63 $31.06 $27.56 $52.94 §46.81
50 $2559  $2275 $45.50 $39.81 $80.06 $70.44
55 $40.25 $30.63 $74.81 $55.56 $138.69 $101.94
60 $62.56  $43.09 $11944  $80.50 $228.81  $149.19
65 $108.50  $68.69 $21131  $131.69 $399.44  $24631
70 $181.13  $10894 $35656  $212.19 $65231 40031

Monthly Premiums for: OPTerm 10
10-Year Guaranteed TERM LIFE INSURANCE

20 and 30 Year Guaranteed Leve! Torm also available.

For a Complimentary Personalized Quote complete and FAX to: 866-215-0594

 Name Age Male/ Female  Smoker Yes/ No
. Face Amount , Phone #
Fax # Email:

To OPT OUT from recsiving future solicitations please fax to Toll Free: 866-215-0594 — or call 845-803-8390

Email: optow@dimadvisoryproup.com

‘Legal & Genernf America life insuranee products are underwevitten end iszued by Banner Life Insurance Corpary, Urbana, ME? find William Penn Life Insiyante Company of

New Yook, Garden City, NY. Banner produtts ere gistributed in 49 stales end in DC. Willam Penn products are aveikble exciusively in New York, Banner does
et solleit busiess thare, OPTerm policy form # ICCT20PTN an¢ state variaticns. In New York, OP Term poicy form # OPTN-NY. Prercivme are guarantzed o
. stay Iovel for the initial term period ang increase enmually thercafter. Premiums based on proferred plus non-tobacca, Promivms quoted includs 3 $65 annual polisy fee. Rates
43 0f 04.11.13. Two-yeer contestability and micide pravisions ipply. Policy deseriptions provided here is not 0 watement of contract. Plesge refer tq the policy forms for falt

disclosure of aff bensSte and Himitations. Compliance # 13- 207,



Case 2:17-cv-00557-LPL Document 1-3 Filed 04/28/17 Page 1 of 2

AQ 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Western District of Pennsylvania

Millers Furniture of Mercer Company d/b/a Haney's
Comfort Living Furniiure, a Pennsylvania
Corporation, individually and as the representative of
a class of similarly-situated persons

Plaintiff(s)

V. Civil Action No.

Banner Live Insurance Company, William Penn Life
Insurance Company of New York, DJM Advisory
Group, LLC, Danald Quirke, and John Does 1-12

Defendant(s)
SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Dejéndant 's name and address) C/O BRYAN R NEWCOMBE
3275 BENNETT CREEK AVE
FREDERICK MD 21704

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,

whose name and address are:  Shenkan Injury Lawyers, LLC
. P.O. Box 7255, New Castle, PA 16107
(248) 562-1320

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
* “You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AQ 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
{This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

'O Ipersonally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) s or

7 1 left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (rame)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) . , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

(1 1 served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or
O T returned the summons unexecuted because ;or
_ 0 Other (specify):
My fees are § for travel and $ for services, for a total of § 0.00

1 declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
B Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’'s address

. Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Western District of Pennsylvania

Millers Furniture of Mercer Company d/b/a Haney's
Comfort Living Furniture, a Pennsylvania
Corporation, individually and as the representative of
a class of similarly-situated persons

Plaintiff(s)
V.

Civil Action No.

" Banner Live Insurance Company, William Penn Life
insurance Company of New York, DJM Advisory
Group, LLC, Donaid Quirke, and John Does 1-12

Defendant(s)

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) DIM Advisory Group LLC
’ 551 A Route 6
Mahopac, NY 10541

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,

whose name and address are:  Shenkan Injury Lawyers, LLC
o - P.0. Box 7255, New Castle, PA 16107
(248) 562-1320

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
. You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

“was received by me on (date)

Date:

O 1 personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) sor

3 1 left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (ame)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

O I served the summons on (name of individuat) , who is

.designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (rame of organization)

on (date) ;or

(7 1 returned the summons unexecuted because ;o1

O Other Gpecify):

My fees are § for travel and $ for services, for a total of § 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server's address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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AQ 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Western District of Pennsylvania

Millers Furniture of Mercer Company d/b/a Haney's
Comfort Living Furniture, a Pennsylvania
Corporation, individually and as the representative of
a class of similarly-situated persons

Plaintiffs)

V. Civil Action No.

: Banner Live Insurance Company, William Penn Life
" Insurance Company of New York, DJM Advisory
Group, LLC, Donald Quirke, and John Does 1-12

Defendant(s)
SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) Donald Quirke
41 Scout Hill Road, Mahopac, New York 10541

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) -— or 60 days if you -
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
‘P. 12 (a}(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,

whose name and address are:  Shenkan Injury Lawyers, LLC
- P.O. Box 7255, New Castle, PA 16107
(248) 562-1320

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You alse must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AQ 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civii Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

Date:

O I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ;or

{J 1left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (rame)

» a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

1 1 served the summons on (name of individual) ,who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (rame of organization)

on. (date) ; or
O I retumed the summons unexecuted because ; or
0 Other gspecifp):
My fees are § for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Server’s signature

Printed name and title

 Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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AOQ 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Western District of Pennsylvania

Millers Furniture of Mercer Company d/b/a Haney's
Comfort Living Furniture, a Pennsylvania
Corporation, individually and as the representative of
a class of similarly-situated persons

Plaintiff(s)

v. Civil Action No.

Banner Live Insurance Company, William Penn Life
Insurance Company of New York, DJM Advisory
Group, LLC, Donald Quirke, and John Does 1-12

Defendant(s)
SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Pefendant’s name and address) William Pennn Life Insurance Company of New York
100 Quentin Rossevelt Boulevard
Garden City, NY 11530

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2} or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,

. whose name and address are: . Shenkan Injury Lawyers, LLC
" P.O. Box 7255, New Castle, PA 16107
{248) 562-1320

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Surmnmons in a Civil Action {Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P, 4 (1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

Date:

O I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) . ; or

O Ileft the summeons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (rame)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

¥ 1 served the summons on (rame of individual) , who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or
1 1 returned the summons unexecuted because ;or
O Other ¢Gpecify):
My fees are § for travel and § for services, for a total of § 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Server’s signature

Printed name and litle

Server’s address

~ Additional information regarding attempted service, ete:
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